
55 

NORTHWESTERN INDIANA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 
March 21, 2024 at 9:00 A.M. 

NIRPC Lake Michigan Room, 6100 Southport Road, Portage 

1.0 Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance – Tom Dermody 

2.0 New Appointments to the Commission - Attorney Dave Hollenbeck 

3.0 Roll Call – Candice Eklund 

4.0 Public Comment on Today’s Agenda Items 
Members of the audience who have signed up to comment on agenda items will be recognized by the 
Chair.  Time is limited to 3 minutes per commenter. 

5.0 Approval of the Minutes of the February 15, 2024, Executive Board Meeting (pp. 1-3) 
ACTION REQUESTED: Approval 

6.0 Report of the Chair – Tom Dermody 

7.0 Report of the Executive Director - Ty Warner 

8.0 Finance and Personnel Committee – Wendy Mis (pp. 4-36)   
8.1 Resolution #24-04:  Authorizing Payment of Remaining Non-Award Funds in the La Porte County 

Revolving Loan Fund to La Porte, Indiana, and Michigan City, Indiana, and cessation of the La Porte 
County Revolving Loan Fund Program for New Loans. 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Approval 

9.0 Technical Planning Committee - Kevin Breitzke 
9.1 Presentation: NWI 2050+ and TIP Approval Update, Tom Vander Woude 

10.0 INDOT - Matt Deitchley, La Porte District Deputy Commissioner 
10.1 Presentation: I-80/94 FlexRoad MEGA Project 

11.0 Other Business 

12.0 Announcements  

13.0 Adjournment 
The next meeting on April 18, 2024 will be a Full Commission meeting. 

6100 Southport Road 
Portage, Indiana 46368 

(219) 763-6060
www.nirpc.org



            NIRPC Executive Board Meeting  
6100 Southport Road, Portage, IN 

February 15, 2024 Minutes 

Call to Order 
Chair Tom Dermody called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.  The meeting was 
streamed live on YouTube.   

New Appointments to the Commission 
Dave Hollenbeck announced the appointments to the Commission of James Burge (Porter), Jonathan Haley 
(Long Beach), Keesha Hardaway (Merrillville), Vanessa Hernandez-Orange (East Chicago), and David Phelps 
(Beverly Shores). 

Roll call - Taken by Candice Eklund. 

Present 
The 8 Executive Board members present at the meeting included Kevin Breitzke (Porter County Surveyor), 
Tom Dermody (La Porte), Bill Emerson (Lake County Surveyor), Justin Kiel (La Porte County Council), Wendy 
Mis (Munster), Lisa Rosenkranz (LaCrosse), Tom Schmitt (Schererville), and Jim Ton (Chesterton).   

The 4 other Commissioners present at the meeting included James Burge (Porter), Robert Carnahan (Cedar 
Lake), Kurt Jordan (Burns Harbor), and George Topoll (Union Township).  Also present was Adam Parkhouse 
representing INDOT. 

Absent 
The 2 Executive Board members absent from the meeting included Denise Ebert (Wanatah) and Jim Pressel 
(Governor Appointee). 

Gary, Hebron, Kingsbury, Michigan City, The Pines, Trail Creek, and Valparaiso have appointed no 
representatives to NIRPC. 

Staff present included Ty Warner, Tom Vander Woude, Kathy Luther, Denarie Kane, Charles Bradsky, Scott 
Weber, Kevin Polette, Candice Eklund, and attorney Dave Hollenbeck. 

Public Comment – There were no public comments. 

Approval of Minutes 
The minutes of the January 18, 2024, Full Commission meeting were approved on motion by Bill Emerson and 
seconded by Jim Ton. 

Report of the Chair – Tom Dermody 
Tom Dermody reported he attended the National Association of Regional Councils (NARC) conference this week 
and turned further reporting over to Mr. Warner. 

Report of the Executive Director - Ty Warner 
Ty Warner appreciated Tom Dermody, Justin Kiel, and Wendy Mis attending the NARC Conference of Regions in 
Washington, DC this year.  Warner reported that one of the primary focus areas was on transportation and laying 
the groundwork now for the re-authorization of the next transportation bill.  This new legislation will come up in two 
years and there is still no sustainable source of funding for the Highway Trust Fund program yet.  This funds all the 
projects that come through NIRPC’s normal transportation funding programs and is currently funded by the gas 
tax, which has not changed since 1993.  There is a huge movement to try and replace that allocation with a 
mileage-based user fee, also known as a Road User Charge, moving away from the dependence on the gas tax.  
The group attending the NARC conference also discussed the ongoing issues with blocked railroad crossings, 
stating that although some efforts have been made in Hammond since the ProPublica article capturing on video 
school children crawling under railroad cars, it continues to be a problem to find effective solutions, and 
congressional help will be needed to bring those class 1 railroads to the table for discussion.  Thirdly, the group 
discussed the Calumet National Heritage Area, where NIRPC has passed a resolution in support of this initiative 
but has so far not been introduced.   

1



Wendy Mis reported the NARC conference offered great information and felt the sessions were helpful from both 
the municipalities and the MPOs points of view and appreciated the opportunity to attend.  Tom Dermody reported 
La Porte County has had dealings with the Norfolk and Southern Railroad, who has not shown interest in 
participating as a good community partner, but noted the top administration in La Porte County is meeting with the 
CEO of Norfolk and Southern Railroad today.  Justin Kiel reported he had the opportunity to moderate a panel 
where the Administrator of the Federal Railroad Administration was speaking and was able to talk with him 
regarding the issues La Porte is facing with the railroads.   

Ty Warner provided an update on House Bill 1251 that would increase the local appropriations NIRPC receives 
from the counties that has not changed since 1992.  Representative Hal Slager introduced House Bill 1251 and 
asked to receive resolutions of support from Lake, La Porte, and Porter Counties to ensure they are aware of and in 
agreement with increasing the appropriation to NIRPC.  La Porte County approved the request in January.  Lake and 
Porter Counties also approved the request but with two stipulations; (1) increase the appropriations $0.16 a year 
for five years (2025-2029) to phase in the increase to $1.50 per capita, and (2)   re-visit the counties for any 
additional appropriation increase once the per capita amount reaches $1.50 in 2029.  Warner is thankful for the 
support from all three counties and the value the counties are seeing from NIRPC.  Hal Slager is now seeking to 
attach the language in House Bill 1251 to a similar bill from the Senate.   

Denarie Kane reported NIRPC will be getting a Fellow through the International Economic Development Council 
(IEDC).  NIRPC received notification last week that they were 1 of 65 organizations across the country selected for 
this inaugural Economic Recovery Corps program.  The EDA is funding the $30 million program and will offset the 
cost of the Fellow for two and a half years to a host organization.  The Fellow selected for NIRPC is Celena Green, 
who will be working on in-depth research on vacant and brownfield sites within a certain proximity of Lake County.  
Kathy Luther attended training in Portland, Oregon to be a host organization and Ms. Kane attended virtually.   

Charles Bradsky announced there will be a New Administration Workshop at NIRPC on February 29 from 10:30 a.m. 
to 12:30 p.m.  The workshop will focus on how NIRPC administers federal funds, disburses federal funds, and 
submitting Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) applications.  A registration form to sign up for the workshop will be 
sent out tomorrow. 

Environmental Management Policy Committee (EMPC) – Bill Emerson 
Bill Emerson reported the EMPC met on February 1, 2024.  Kathy Luther added there was a presentation on the 
Sensible Tools Handbook +.  A summary was provided on the different climate planning and climate grants 
available at the state and metropolitan area levels.  Kathy also noted there will be a working group meeting on 
March 7 at 9:00 a.m. to focus on the NOFA to discuss funding categories and projects that the EMPC will rank for 
their committee.  The next EMPC meeting will be held on May 2, 2024.   

Finance & Personnel Committee (F & P) – Wendy Mis 
Wendy Mis reported the F&P Committee did not meet this month. The Full Commission gave authority to Attorney 
Dave Hollenbeck and Executive Director Ty Warner at the Full Commission meeting last month to continue the 
lease negotiations and executive the new lease on the Commission’s behalf.  Attorney Hollenbeck reported NIRPC 
now has an approved five-year lease, which includes some additions such as the Portage Redevelopment 
Commission (RDC) will be responsible for changing the American and State flags in the courtyard. The approved 
lease will now include the utilities being factored into the lease, eliminating utility invoices, which were quite 
inconsistent in the past.  Warner noted the City of Portage RDC approved a comprehensive mold assessment to 
ensure the building is safe for staff to occupy.  The next F&P meeting is scheduled for March 21, 2024. 

Technical Planning Committee (TPC) - Kevin Breitzke 
Kevin Breitzke reported the TPC met on February 6, 2024, and heard a presentation on the Roads chapter of 
NWI 2050+.  The TPC brought the two action items below to the Executive Board for consideration with a 
favorable recommendation.  The next TPC meeting is scheduled for March 5, 2024. 

• Resolution #24-02: Air Quality Conformity Determination (AQCD) report for NWI 2050+ and FY 2024-
2028 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP):  Scott Weber reported there were no public
comments received.  The NWI 2050+ and the Fiscal Years 2024-2028 TIP were adopted last year.
Before the Indiana Department of Transportation (INDOT) can officially approve these core documents
for use in administering federal aid funding, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) must approve

2



the AQCD report because portions of our region are designated non-attainment for ozone under the 
Clean Air Act by the United State Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA).  The TPC requested 
approval of this resolution subject there are no adverse comments received during the public 
comment period ending February 20, with an effective date of March 19.  On motion by Jim Ton and 
seconded by Bill Emerson, the Executive Board approved Resolution #24-02. 

• Resolution #24-03: FY 2024 – 2028 TIP Amendment #24-01:  Charles Bradsky reported there were
no public comments received.  The Inter Agency Consultation Group (ICG) submitted questions and
NIRPC addressed each question.  Approval and concurrence were given for these projects by members
of the ICG on January 18, 2024.  Bradsky briefly discussed the summary of projects in TIP Amendment
#24-01, which is subject to FHWA and USEPA approving NIRPC’s Air Quality Conformity Determination
on March 19, 2024.  On motion by Kevin Breitzke and seconded by Jim Ton, the Executive Board
approved Resolution #24-03.

INDOT – Adam Parkhouse 
Adam Parkhouse reported INDOT organized a statewide Safety Summit in Indianapolis last month, which was in 
response to Commissioner Mike Schmitt’s state goal to reduce fatal crashes and serious injury crashes along 
Indiana Roadways by 25% over the next 10 years.  In the coming months, INDOT will hold similar summits at 
the district level.  Parkhouse also addressed the potholes situation that has had a substantial impact on our 
roadways and how they are working around the clock to fill them in.  Kevin Breitzke invited INDOT to give an 
updated presentation on the Borman Expressway since it is a MEGA project and Parkhouse agreed. 

Other Business 
No other business was reported. 

Announcements 
Bob Carnahan announced Cedar Lake met with Lowell’s Town Council (due to Cedar Lake sending their 
sewage to Lowell) where they were informed the expansion of the sewage plant may cost the Towns of Cedar 
Lake and Lowell $35-$40 million.  Carnahan asked if anyone knew of any federal grants to help the towns 
reduce this burden on the residents. 

Adjournment  
Hearing no other business, Tom Dermody adjourned the meeting at 9:52 a.m.  The next meeting on March 21, 
2024, will be an Executive Board meeting. 

The livestream video recording of this meeting is available on NIRPC’s YouTube Channel at 
Executive Board Meeting 2-15-24 (youtube.com) 

3

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=nx0zK1T8kJo


RESOLUTION 24-04 

A RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHWESTERN INDIANA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF REMAINING NON-AWARD FUNDS IN THE LA PORTE COUNTY 
REVOLVING LOAN FUND TO LA PORTE, INDIANA, AND MICHIGAN CITY, INDIANA, AND 
CESSATION OF THE LA PORTE COUNTY REVOLVING LOAN FUND PROGRAM FOR NEW LOANS 

Whereas, the Northwestern Indiana Regional Planning Commission (hereafter referred to as 
“The Commission”) has operated since 1987, a La Porte County Revolving Loan Fund (hereafter 
referred to as “The RLF”) under the Economic Development Administration (EDA) of the U.S. 
Department of Commerce; and 

Whereas, on September 16, 2021, the Commission approved Resolution 21-16 requesting 
release of the RLF from certain requirements of the EDA, which is commonly referred to as 
defederalization; and 

Whereas, on March 30, 2022, the defederalization request was sent to the EDA; and  

Whereas, the EDA approved the defederalization of the RLF on October 30, 2023; and 

Whereas, an Agreement to Release the EDA Federal Interest In A Revolving Loan Fund Award 
(hereafter referred to as “The Agreement” and attached as Exhibit “A”) was executed by the 
Executive Director on November 9, 2023; and 

Whereas, the defederalization allows the Award funds, defined in the Agreement as the 
federal share of the RLF capital base, to be used for one or more activities that continue to carry out 
the economic development purposes of the Public Works and Economic Development Act of 1965 
(PWEDA); and  

Whereas, the La Porte County Revolving Loan Managing Board (hereinafter referred to as 
“The Board”) met on February 2, 2024, and has recommended to the Finance and Personnel 
Committee, the return of remaining Non-Award funds to the cities of La Porte, Indiana, and Michigan 
City, Indiana, in equal amounts under the proposed terms in draft agreements attached as Exhibit “B” 
and Exhibit “C”; and 

Whereas, the Board has further recommended to the Finance and Personnel Committee that 
the RLF program cease in terms of approval of new loans by the La Porte County loan committee; and 

4



Whereas, the Finance and Personnel Committee has reviewed the recommendations from 
the Board and has recommended the same to the Commission; and  

 
Whereas, the Commission supports the payment of remaining Non-Award funds to La Porte, 

Indiana and Michigan City, Indiana; and 
 
Whereas, the Commission supports the cessation of the La Porte County RLF program for 

new loans; and 
 
Whereas, the Commission authorizes NIRPC’s Attorney to negotiate final terms for the 

agreements with each city in consultation with the Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer, and 
Economic Development District Coordinator;  and 

 
Whereas, the Commission authorizes the Executive Director to enter into agreements with 

each city upon the conclusion of negotiations.  
 

Now, Therefore Be It Resolved that the Commission approves 
 

1) that no new loans be made from the La Porte County Revolving Loan Fund, and 
 

2) the payment of remaining Non-Award funds to La Porte, Indiana, and Michigan 
City, Indiana in equal amounts as per final agreement terms yet to be negotiated. 

 
 

Duly adopted by the Northwestern Indiana Regional Planning Commission this 21st day of March 
2024. 
 
 

 

___________________________ 
Thomas Dermody 
Chairperson 

ATTEST: 

 

 

              ___________________________ 
              Justin Kiel 
              Secretary 

 
 
 

5



6



7



8



9



10



EXHIBIT B to RESOLUTION 2024-04 (13-page Exhibit) 
 

AGREEMENT TO RETURN REMAINING NON-AWARD FUNDS IN A 
REVOLVING LOAN FUND TO THE CITY OF LA PORTE, INDIANA 

 
This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into on _______________________, 2024, (the “Effective 
Date”), by and between the City of La Porte (“City”) located at 801 Michigan Avenue, La Porte, Indiana, 
and the Northwestern Indiana Regional Planning Commission (“NIRPC”) located at 6100 Southport Road, 
Portage, Indiana.   

1. PURPOSE AND SCOPE: The City and NIRPC intend for this Agreement to provide the terms by 
which payments of remaining Non-Award funds from the La Porte County Revolving Loan Fund 
(“RLF”) will be made by NIRPC to the City over time until the retirement of debt on all existing 
loans.  Non-Award funds are the remaining amounts of the local match provided in 1987 in 
equal amounts by the City of La Porte and City of Michigan City as a condition of receipt of 
Federal Award funds from the Economic Development Administration (“EDA”) for the 
establishment of the La Porte County Revolving Loan Fund program (“RLF”).  

 
2. TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  

 
A)  NIRPC and the EDA executed on November 9, 2023, an Agreement to Release the EDA 

Federal Interest In A Revolving Loan Fund (“Release Agreement”) which is attached to this 
Agreement as Exhibit “A”.  The City acknowledges the Release Agreement and its 1b 
provision. 
 

B) The City shall submit a written request to NIRPC by no later than June 1, 2024, requesting 
the initial payment and biennial payments of remaining Non-Award funds. 

 
C) The initial payment from NIRPC to City shall be made by no later than September 1, 2024. 

 
D) The basis for calculation of the initial payment is from the RLF’s June 30, 2023, Financial 

Report (“Report”) submitted to the EDA which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit “B”.  
 

E) Non-Award funds are 27.59% and Federal Award funds are 72.41% of the RLF Cash 
Available for Lending as shown on line D2 of Report. 

 
F) The initial payment to City shall be based on half of 27.59% of the RLF Cash Available for 

Lending dollar amount ($279,111.33). 
 
G) The basis for calculation of the biennial payments is from future monthly loan payments 

received from borrowers. 
 

H) Non-Award funds are 27.59% and Federal Award funds are 72.41% of the Principal 
Outstanding as shown on line D1 of Report 

11



I) Subsequent biennial payments from NIRPC to City shall be made by no later than 
September 1st in 2026, 2028, 2030, 2032, and 2034 or longer if any of the existing loans are 
refinanced or granted moratoriums thereby extending their payments beyond the 
currently anticipated last payment date. 

 
J) NIRPC shall notify City in writing at address in Agreement and/or via email to the Mayor 

within thirty (30) days if refinancings or moratoriums extend the Biennial Payment Time 
Periods.  

 
K) Each biennial payment to City shall be based on half of 27.59% of the loan principal only 

payments received by NIRPC during these time periods.   

2026 Biennial Payment Time Period : Principal payments received from July 1, 2023, 
through June 30, 2026.  

2028 Biennial Payment Time Period : Principal payments received from July 1, 2026, 
through June 30, 2028.  

2030 Biennial Payment Time Period : Principal payments received from July 1, 2028, 
through June 30, 2030.  

2032 Biennial Payment Time Period : Principal payments received from July 1, 2030, 
through June 30, 2032.  

2034 Biennial Payment Time Period : Principal payments received from July 1, 2032, 
through June 30, 2034.  

 

3. AUTHORIZATION AND EXECUTION: This agreement shall be signed by the City of La Porte’s 
Board of Public Works & Safety and the Executive Director of the Northwestern Indiana Regional 
Planning Commission and shall be effective as of the date first written above. 

 

NORTHWESTERN INDIANA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION  

 

_____________________________________   _____________________________ 

Tyson Warner, AICP      Date     

Executive Director 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Attest:  Talaya Jones, Chief Financial Officer 

12



 

CITY OF LA PORTE, INDIANA 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS & SAFETY 

 

____________________________________   _______________________________ 

Thomas P. Dermody, Mayor     Date 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Attest:  Courtney Parthun, Clerk-Treasurer 

 

13



14



15



16



17



18



N
or

th
w

es
te

rn
 I

nd
ia

na
 R

eg
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
is

si
on

-9
18

05
IN

-2
02

3.
06

.3
0

P
ar

t 
I:

 G
ra

nt
ee

 I
nf

or
m

at
io

n

1.
R

L
F 

N
am

e:
N

or
th

w
es

te
rn

 I
nd

ia
na

 R
eg

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
C

om
m

is
si

on
-9

18
05

IN

2.
E

D
A

 A
w

ar
d 

N
um

be
r:

06
-3

9-
02

18
0

3.
R

ep
or

tin
g 

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

3
4.

St
at

us
:

Su
bm

itt
ed

5.
R

L
F 

D
ue

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 3

0,
 2

02
3

6.
R

ep
or

t T
yp

e:
Se

m
ia

nn
ua

l
7.

E
nd

 o
f 

Y
ea

r 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l R

ep
or

t:
no

8.
R

eg
io

na
l O

ff
ic

e:
C

hi
ca

go
9.

St
at

e:
IN

P
ar

t 
II

: 
P

or
tf

ol
io

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
tu

s

A
.R

L
F

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
es

F
ed

er
al

 G
ra

nt
 R

at
e

1.
E

D
A

 F
un

di
ng

:
72

.4
1%

$7
00

,0
00

.0
0

2.
R

L
F 

L
oc

al
 M

at
ch

:
$2

66
,6

67
.0

0
3.

T
ot

al
 R

L
F 

Fu
nd

in
g:

$9
66

,6
67

.0
0

B
.C

um
ul

at
iv

e 
R

L
F

 I
nc

om
e 

F
un

d

1.
In

te
re

st
 E

ar
ne

d 
on

 L
oa

ns
:

$4
98

,5
34

.0
6

2.
In

te
re

st
 E

ar
ne

d 
on

 D
ep

os
it 

A
cc

ou
nt

s:
$1

21
,5

38
.8

9
3.

Fe
es

 E
ar

ne
d 

on
 C

lo
se

d 
L

oa
ns

:
$4

7,
11

2.
50

4.
R

L
F 

In
co

m
e 

fr
om

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

Fe
es

:
$4

3,
66

2.
50

5.
O

th
er

 R
L

F 
In

co
m

e:
$0

.0
0

6.
T

ot
al

 R
L

F 
In

co
m

e:
$7

10
,8

47
.9

5
7.

Po
rt

io
n 

R
L

F 
In

co
m

e 
A

dm
in

. E
xp

en
se

:
$5

55
,3

33
.7

2

19



8.
R

L
F 

In
co

m
e 

A
dd

ed
 to

 C
ap

ita
l B

as
e:

$1
55

,5
14

.2
3

9.
E

xp
la

na
tio

n 
of

 O
th

er
 I

nc
om

e:
n/

a

C
.S

ta
tu

s 
of

 R
L

F
 C

ap
it

al

1.
T

ot
al

 R
L

F 
Fu

nd
in

g:
$9

66
,6

67
.0

0
2.

R
L

F 
In

co
m

e 
A

dd
ed

 to
 R

L
F 

C
ap

ita
l:

$1
55

,5
14

.2
3

3.
V

ol
un

ta
ri

ly
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

ed
 C

ap
ita

l:
$0

.0
0

4.
L

oa
n 

L
os

se
s:

$6
36

,0
39

.6
2

5.
D

is
al

lo
w

an
ce

:
$0

.0
0

6.
R

L
F 

C
ap

ita
l B

as
e:

$4
86

,1
41

.6
1

D
.C

ur
re

nt
 B

al
an

ce
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

N
ew

 L
oa

ns

1.
Pr

in
ci

pa
l O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 o

n 
L

oa
ns

:
$2

07
,0

30
.2

8
2.

R
L

F 
C

as
h 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
L

en
di

ng
:

$2
79

,1
11

.3
3

3.
R

L
F 

$ 
C

om
m

itt
ed

 N
ot

 D
is

bu
rs

ed
:

$0
.0

0
4.

C
as

h 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

N
et

 o
f 

C
om

m
itm

en
ts

:
$2

79
,1

11
.3

3
5.

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 C

as
h 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
L

en
di

ng
:

57
.4

1%

P
ar

t 
II

I:
 L

oa
n 

P
or

tf
ol

io
 S

um
m

ar
y

A
.P

or
tf

ol
io

 S
ta

tu
s

N
um

be
r

R
L

F
 $

 L
oa

ne
d

P
ri

nc
ip

al
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
L

oa
n 

L
os

se
s

1.
C

ur
re

nt
 L

oa
ns

:
3

$2
62

,6
40

.0
0

$1
26

,3
85

.5
0

2.
D

el
in

qu
en

t L
oa

ns
:

1
$1

5,
00

0.
00

$1
3,

74
2.

44
3.

L
oa

ns
 in

 D
ef

au
lt:

1
$7

5,
00

0.
00

$6
6,

90
2.

34
4.

T
ot

al
 A

ct
iv

e 
L

oa
ns

:
5

$3
52

,6
40

.0
0

$2
07

,0
30

.2
8

5.
W

ri
tte

n 
O

ff
 L

oa
ns

:
14

$8
37

,7
91

.0
0

$6
36

,0
39

.6
2

6.
Fu

lly
 R

ep
ai

d 
L

oa
ns

:
48

$2
,8

95
,0

74
.8

4
7.

T
ot

al
 L

oa
ns

:
67

$4
,0

85
,5

05
.8

4
$2

07
,0

30
.2

8
$6

36
,0

39
.6

2

8.
N

um
be

r 
of

 A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 R
ec

ie
ve

d:
1

20



9.
N

um
be

r 
of

 L
oa

ns
 C

lo
se

d 
D

ur
in

g 
R

ep
or

tin
g:

0
10

.A
gg

re
ga

te
 P

L
L

s:
no

11
.C

ou
nt

 o
f 

A
gg

re
ga

te
 P

L
L

s:

21



P
ar

t 
IV

: 
R

is
k 

Sc
or

in
g 

M
ea

su
re

s

A
.C

ap
it

al
C

.E
ar

ni
ng

s

1.
C

ap
ita

l B
as

e 
In

de
x:

0.
50

29
1.

 N
et

 R
L

F 
In

co
m

e:
78

.1
2%

2.
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
E

xp
en

se
s 

%
 o

f 
In

co
m

e:
0.

00
%

3.
R

L
F 

In
co

m
e 

us
ed

 f
or

 A
dm

in
. E

xp
en

se
s:

$0
.0

0
4.

R
L

F 
In

co
m

e 
ea

rn
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r:

$3
,3

79
.7

0

B
.A

ss
et

s
D

.L
iq

ui
di

ty

1.
D

ef
au

lt 
R

at
e:

32
.3

2%
1.

 A
llo

w
ab

le
 C

as
h 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
:

33
.2

0%
2.

D
ef

au
lt 

R
at

e 
O

ve
r 

T
im

e 
(M

on
th

s)
:

24
2.

 C
as

h 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

:
57

.4
1%

3.
L

oa
n 

W
ri

te
 O

ff
 R

at
io

:
22

.5
8

3.
 C

as
h 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

ve
r 

T
im

e 
(M

on
th

s)
:

6
4.

D
ol

la
rs

 W
ri

tte
n 

O
ff

:
16

.4
0

E
.S

tr
at

eg
ic

 R
es

ul
ts

R
L

F
 P

la
n 

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

iv
e 

L
oa

ns
T

ot
al

 L
oa

ns

T
ot

al
 $

 L
ev

er
ag

ed
:

$1
60

,7
98

.0
0

$2
1,

71
2,

26
0.

00
L

oa
n 

L
ev

er
ag

e 
R

at
io

:
2.

00
 : 

1.
00

0.
46

 : 
1.

00
5.

31
 : 

1.
00

Jo
bs

 C
re

at
ed

:
25

.0
0

99
.0

0
Jo

bs
 S

av
ed

:
12

.0
0

24
8.

00
T

ot
al

 J
ob

s:
37

.0
0

34
7.

00
C

os
t p

er
 J

ob
:

$2
5,

00
0.

00
$9

,5
30

.8
1

$1
1,

77
3.

79

P
ar

t 
V

. R
L

F
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Su

m
m

ar
y

A
.R

L
F

 P
la

n

1.
D

at
e 

of
 E

D
A

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
R

L
F 

Pl
an

:
Fe

br
ua

ry
 1

1,
 2

02
1

2.
D

at
e 

of
 A

nn
ua

l R
L

F 
Pl

an
 C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n:

Fe
br

ua
ry

 1
2,

 2
02

1

22



B
.A

ud
it

1.
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
 D

at
e:

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

3
2.

D
at

e 
of

 M
os

t R
ec

en
t A

ud
it:

O
ct

ob
er

 1
0,

 2
02

2
3.

Si
ng

le
 A

ud
it:

ye
s

4.
Pr

og
ra

m
 S

pe
ci

fi
c 

A
ud

it:
no

5.
A

ud
it 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 F

A
C

 o
n 

T
im

e?
:

Y
es

6.
If

 n
ot

 w
hy

 n
ot

?:
7.

D
oe

s 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
on

ta
in

 a
ny

 F
in

di
ng

s?
:

Y
es

C
.M

an
ag

em
en

t

1.
A

ny
 k

ey
 s

ta
ff

 tu
rn

ov
er

:
Y

es
2.

If
 y

es
 p

le
as

e 
ex

pl
ai

n:
N

ew
 a

cc
ou

nt
an

t h
ir

ed
.

D
.K

ey
 R

et
en

ti
on

 P
er

so
nn

el
N

am
e

T
it

le
T

en
ur

e

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r

T
ys

on
 W

ar
ne

r
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r
3+

 y
ea

rs
L

en
di

ng
 D

ir
ec

to
r

T
al

ay
a 

Jo
ne

s
C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ff
ic

er
3+

 y
ea

rs
Fi

na
nc

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r

T
al

ay
a 

Jo
ne

s
C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ff
ic

er
3+

 y
ea

rs
R

ep
or

tin
g 

O
ff

ic
ia

l
T

al
ay

a 
Jo

ne
s

C
hi

ef
 F

in
an

ci
al

 O
ff

ic
er

3+
 y

ea
rs

P
ar

t 
V

I:
 A

pp
ro

va
l P

ro
ce

ss
 I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

A
.A

pp
ro

va
l P

ro
ce

ss
 I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

1.
V

al
id

at
io

n 
on

 A
ut

ho
ri

ty
 :

ye
s

2.
E

xt
ra

 A
pp

ro
va

l N
ee

de
d:

no
3.

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
St

at
em

en
t :

ye
s

4.
R

et
ur

n 
fo

r 
C

or
re

ct
io

ns
 :

5.
Su

bm
is

si
on

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

8,
 2

02
3

6.
Su

bm
itt

er
:

T
al

ay
a 

Jo
ne

s
7.

A
pp

ro
va

l D
at

e:

23



 EXHIBIT C to RESOLUTION 2024-04 (13-page Exhibit) 

 
AGREEMENT TO RETURN REMAINING NON-AWARD FUNDS IN A 

REVOLVING LOAN FUND TO THE CITY OF MICHIGAN CITY, INDIANA 
 

This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into on _______________________, 2024, (the “Effective 
Date”), by and between the City of Michigan City (“City”) located at 100 E. 4th Street, Michigan City, 
Indiana, and the Northwestern Indiana Regional Planning Commission (“NIRPC”) located at 6100 
Southport Road, Portage, Indiana.   

1. PURPOSE AND SCOPE: The City and NIRPC intend for this Agreement to provide the terms by 
which payments of remaining Non-Award funds from the La Porte County Revolving Loan Fund 
(“RLF”) will be made by NIRPC to the City over time until the retirement of debt on all existing 
loans.  Non-Award funds are the remaining amounts of the local match provided in 1987 in 
equal amounts by the City of La Porte and City of Michigan City as a condition of receipt of 
Federal Award funds from the Economic Development Administration (“EDA”) for the 
establishment of the La Porte County Revolving Loan Fund program (“RLF”).  

 
2. TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  

 
A) The EDA and NIRPC executed respectively on October 30, 2023, and November 9, 2023, an 

Agreement to Release the EDA Federal Interest In A Revolving Loan Fund (“Release 
Agreement”) which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit “A”.  The City acknowledges 
the Release Agreement and its 1b provision. 
 

B) The City shall submit a written request to NIRPC by no later than July 1, 2024, requesting 
the initial payment and biennial payments of remaining Non-Award funds. 

 
C) The initial payment from NIRPC to City shall be made by no later than September 1, 2024. 

 
D) The basis for calculation of the initial payment is from the RLF’s June 30, 2023, Financial 

Report (“Report”) submitted to the EDA which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit “B”.  
 

E) Non-Award funds are 27.59% and Federal Award funds are 72.41% of the RLF Cash 
Available for Lending as shown on line D2 of Report. 

 
F) The initial payment to City shall be based on half of 27.59% of the RLF Cash Available for 

Lending dollar amount ($279,111.33). 
 
G) The basis for calculation of the biennial payments is from future monthly loan payments 

received from borrowers. 
 

H) Non-Award funds are 27.59% and Federal Award funds are 72.41% of the Principal 
Outstanding as shown on line D1 of Report 

24



I) Subsequent biennial payments from NIRPC to City shall be made by no later than 
September 1st in 2026, 2028, 2030, 2032, and 2034 or longer if any of the existing loans are 
refinanced or granted moratoriums thereby extending their payments beyond the 
currently anticipated last payment date. 

 
J) NIRPC shall notify City in writing at address in Agreement and/or via email to the Mayor 

within thirty (30) days if refinancings or moratoriums extend the Biennial Payment Time 
Periods.  

 
K) Each biennial payment to City shall be based on half of 27.59% of the loan principal only 

payments received by NIRPC during these time periods.   

2026 Biennial Payment Time Period : Principal payments received from July 1, 2023, 
through June 30, 2026.  

2028 Biennial Payment Time Period : Principal payments received from July 1, 2026, 
through June 30, 2028.  

2030 Biennial Payment Time Period : Principal payments received from July 1, 2028, 
through June 30, 2030.  

2032 Biennial Payment Time Period : Principal payments received from July 1, 2030, 
through June 30, 2032.  

2034 Biennial Payment Time Period : Principal payments received from July 1, 2032, 
through June 30, 2034.  

 

3. AUTHORIZATION AND EXECUTION: This agreement shall be signed by the City of Michigan City’s 
Board of Public Works & Safety and the Executive Director of the Northwestern Indiana Regional 
Planning Commission and shall be effective as of the date first written above. 

 

NORTHWESTERN INDIANA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION  

 

_____________________________________   _____________________________ 

Tyson Warner, AICP      Date    

Executive Director 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Attest:  Talaya Jones, Chief Financial Officer 

25



CITY OF MICHIGAN CITY, INDIANA 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS & SAFETY 

 

____________________________________   _______________________________ 

Tim Bietry, President      Date 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Attest:  Gale A. Neulieb, City Clerk 

 

26



27



28



29



30



31



N
or

th
w

es
te

rn
 I

nd
ia

na
 R

eg
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
is

si
on

-9
18

05
IN

-2
02

3.
06

.3
0

P
ar

t 
I:

 G
ra

nt
ee

 I
nf

or
m

at
io

n

1.
R

L
F 

N
am

e:
N

or
th

w
es

te
rn

 I
nd

ia
na

 R
eg

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
C

om
m

is
si

on
-9

18
05

IN

2.
E

D
A

 A
w

ar
d 

N
um

be
r:

06
-3

9-
02

18
0

3.
R

ep
or

tin
g 

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

3
4.

St
at

us
:

Su
bm

itt
ed

5.
R

L
F 

D
ue

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 3

0,
 2

02
3

6.
R

ep
or

t T
yp

e:
Se

m
ia

nn
ua

l
7.

E
nd

 o
f 

Y
ea

r 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l R

ep
or

t:
no

8.
R

eg
io

na
l O

ff
ic

e:
C

hi
ca

go
9.

St
at

e:
IN

P
ar

t 
II

: 
P

or
tf

ol
io

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
tu

s

A
.R

L
F

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
es

F
ed

er
al

 G
ra

nt
 R

at
e

1.
E

D
A

 F
un

di
ng

:
72

.4
1%

$7
00

,0
00

.0
0

2.
R

L
F 

L
oc

al
 M

at
ch

:
$2

66
,6

67
.0

0
3.

T
ot

al
 R

L
F 

Fu
nd

in
g:

$9
66

,6
67

.0
0

B
.C

um
ul

at
iv

e 
R

L
F

 I
nc

om
e 

F
un

d

1.
In

te
re

st
 E

ar
ne

d 
on

 L
oa

ns
:

$4
98

,5
34

.0
6

2.
In

te
re

st
 E

ar
ne

d 
on

 D
ep

os
it 

A
cc

ou
nt

s:
$1

21
,5

38
.8

9
3.

Fe
es

 E
ar

ne
d 

on
 C

lo
se

d 
L

oa
ns

:
$4

7,
11

2.
50

4.
R

L
F 

In
co

m
e 

fr
om

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

Fe
es

:
$4

3,
66

2.
50

5.
O

th
er

 R
L

F 
In

co
m

e:
$0

.0
0

6.
T

ot
al

 R
L

F 
In

co
m

e:
$7

10
,8

47
.9

5
7.

Po
rt

io
n 

R
L

F 
In

co
m

e 
A

dm
in

. E
xp

en
se

:
$5

55
,3

33
.7

2

32



8.
R

L
F 

In
co

m
e 

A
dd

ed
 to

 C
ap

ita
l B

as
e:

$1
55

,5
14

.2
3

9.
E

xp
la

na
tio

n 
of

 O
th

er
 I

nc
om

e:
n/

a

C
.S

ta
tu

s 
of

 R
L

F
 C

ap
it

al

1.
T

ot
al

 R
L

F 
Fu

nd
in

g:
$9

66
,6

67
.0

0
2.

R
L

F 
In

co
m

e 
A

dd
ed

 to
 R

L
F 

C
ap

ita
l:

$1
55

,5
14

.2
3

3.
V

ol
un

ta
ri

ly
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

ed
 C

ap
ita

l:
$0

.0
0

4.
L

oa
n 

L
os

se
s:

$6
36

,0
39

.6
2

5.
D

is
al

lo
w

an
ce

:
$0

.0
0

6.
R

L
F 

C
ap

ita
l B

as
e:

$4
86

,1
41

.6
1

D
.C

ur
re

nt
 B

al
an

ce
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

N
ew

 L
oa

ns

1.
Pr

in
ci

pa
l O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 o

n 
L

oa
ns

:
$2

07
,0

30
.2

8
2.

R
L

F 
C

as
h 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
L

en
di

ng
:

$2
79

,1
11

.3
3

3.
R

L
F 

$ 
C

om
m

itt
ed

 N
ot

 D
is

bu
rs

ed
:

$0
.0

0
4.

C
as

h 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

N
et

 o
f 

C
om

m
itm

en
ts

:
$2

79
,1

11
.3

3
5.

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 C

as
h 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
L

en
di

ng
:

57
.4

1%

P
ar

t 
II

I:
 L

oa
n 

P
or

tf
ol

io
 S

um
m

ar
y

A
.P

or
tf

ol
io

 S
ta

tu
s

N
um

be
r

R
L

F
 $

 L
oa

ne
d

P
ri

nc
ip

al
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
L

oa
n 

L
os

se
s

1.
C

ur
re

nt
 L

oa
ns

:
3

$2
62

,6
40

.0
0

$1
26

,3
85

.5
0

2.
D

el
in

qu
en

t L
oa

ns
:

1
$1

5,
00

0.
00

$1
3,

74
2.

44
3.

L
oa

ns
 in

 D
ef

au
lt:

1
$7

5,
00

0.
00

$6
6,

90
2.

34
4.

T
ot

al
 A

ct
iv

e 
L

oa
ns

:
5

$3
52

,6
40

.0
0

$2
07

,0
30

.2
8

5.
W

ri
tte

n 
O

ff
 L

oa
ns

:
14

$8
37

,7
91

.0
0

$6
36

,0
39

.6
2

6.
Fu

lly
 R

ep
ai

d 
L

oa
ns

:
48

$2
,8

95
,0

74
.8

4
7.

T
ot

al
 L

oa
ns

:
67

$4
,0

85
,5

05
.8

4
$2

07
,0

30
.2

8
$6

36
,0

39
.6

2

8.
N

um
be

r 
of

 A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 R
ec

ie
ve

d:
1

33



9.
N

um
be

r 
of

 L
oa

ns
 C

lo
se

d 
D

ur
in

g 
R

ep
or

tin
g:

0
10

.A
gg

re
ga

te
 P

L
L

s:
no

11
.C

ou
nt

 o
f 

A
gg

re
ga

te
 P

L
L

s:

34



P
ar

t 
IV

: 
R

is
k 

Sc
or

in
g 

M
ea

su
re

s

A
.C

ap
it

al
C

.E
ar

ni
ng

s

1.
C

ap
ita

l B
as

e 
In

de
x:

0.
50

29
1.

 N
et

 R
L

F 
In

co
m

e:
78

.1
2%

2.
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
E

xp
en

se
s 

%
 o

f 
In

co
m

e:
0.

00
%

3.
R

L
F 

In
co

m
e 

us
ed

 f
or

 A
dm

in
. E

xp
en

se
s:

$0
.0

0
4.

R
L

F 
In

co
m

e 
ea

rn
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r:

$3
,3

79
.7

0

B
.A

ss
et

s
D

.L
iq

ui
di

ty

1.
D

ef
au

lt 
R

at
e:

32
.3

2%
1.

 A
llo

w
ab

le
 C

as
h 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
:

33
.2

0%
2.

D
ef

au
lt 

R
at

e 
O

ve
r 

T
im

e 
(M

on
th

s)
:

24
2.

 C
as

h 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

:
57

.4
1%

3.
L

oa
n 

W
ri

te
 O

ff
 R

at
io

:
22

.5
8

3.
 C

as
h 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

ve
r 

T
im

e 
(M

on
th

s)
:

6
4.

D
ol

la
rs

 W
ri

tte
n 

O
ff

:
16

.4
0

E
.S

tr
at

eg
ic

 R
es

ul
ts

R
L

F
 P

la
n 

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

iv
e 

L
oa

ns
T

ot
al

 L
oa

ns

T
ot

al
 $

 L
ev

er
ag

ed
:

$1
60

,7
98

.0
0

$2
1,

71
2,

26
0.

00
L

oa
n 

L
ev

er
ag

e 
R

at
io

:
2.

00
 : 

1.
00

0.
46

 : 
1.

00
5.

31
 : 

1.
00

Jo
bs

 C
re

at
ed

:
25

.0
0

99
.0

0
Jo

bs
 S

av
ed

:
12

.0
0

24
8.

00
T

ot
al

 J
ob

s:
37

.0
0

34
7.

00
C

os
t p

er
 J

ob
:

$2
5,

00
0.

00
$9

,5
30

.8
1

$1
1,

77
3.

79

P
ar

t 
V

. R
L

F
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Su

m
m

ar
y

A
.R

L
F

 P
la

n

1.
D

at
e 

of
 E

D
A

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
R

L
F 

Pl
an

:
Fe

br
ua

ry
 1

1,
 2

02
1

2.
D

at
e 

of
 A

nn
ua

l R
L

F 
Pl

an
 C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n:

Fe
br

ua
ry

 1
2,

 2
02

1

35



B
.A

ud
it

1.
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
 D

at
e:

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

3
2.

D
at

e 
of

 M
os

t R
ec

en
t A

ud
it:

O
ct

ob
er

 1
0,

 2
02

2
3.

Si
ng

le
 A

ud
it:

ye
s

4.
Pr

og
ra

m
 S

pe
ci

fi
c 

A
ud

it:
no

5.
A

ud
it 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 F

A
C

 o
n 

T
im

e?
:

Y
es

6.
If

 n
ot

 w
hy

 n
ot

?:
7.

D
oe

s 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
on

ta
in

 a
ny

 F
in

di
ng

s?
:

Y
es

C
.M

an
ag

em
en

t

1.
A

ny
 k

ey
 s

ta
ff

 tu
rn

ov
er

:
Y

es
2.

If
 y

es
 p

le
as

e 
ex

pl
ai

n:
N

ew
 a

cc
ou

nt
an

t h
ir

ed
.

D
.K

ey
 R

et
en

ti
on

 P
er

so
nn

el
N

am
e

T
it

le
T

en
ur

e

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r

T
ys

on
 W

ar
ne

r
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r
3+

 y
ea

rs
L

en
di

ng
 D

ir
ec

to
r

T
al

ay
a 

Jo
ne

s
C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ff
ic

er
3+

 y
ea

rs
Fi

na
nc

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r

T
al

ay
a 

Jo
ne

s
C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ff
ic

er
3+

 y
ea

rs
R

ep
or

tin
g 

O
ff

ic
ia

l
T

al
ay

a 
Jo

ne
s

C
hi

ef
 F

in
an

ci
al

 O
ff

ic
er

3+
 y

ea
rs

P
ar

t 
V

I:
 A

pp
ro

va
l P

ro
ce

ss
 I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

A
.A

pp
ro

va
l P

ro
ce

ss
 I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

1.
V

al
id

at
io

n 
on

 A
ut

ho
ri

ty
 :

ye
s

2.
E

xt
ra

 A
pp

ro
va

l N
ee

de
d:

no
3.

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
St

at
em

en
t :

ye
s

4.
R

et
ur

n 
fo

r 
C

or
re

ct
io

ns
 :

5.
Su

bm
is

si
on

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

8,
 2

02
3

6.
Su

bm
itt

er
:

T
al

ay
a 

Jo
ne

s
7.

A
pp

ro
va

l D
at

e:

36


	1-Executive Board Meeting Agenda 3.21.24 without IT Contract
	2-Executive Board Meeting Minutes 2.15.24
	3-Resolution 2024-04 w Exhibits A B C
	1-NIRPC Resolution 2024-04
	2-Resolution 2024-04 Exhiibit A Defederalization Agreement (signed)
	3-Draft Agreement between NIRPC and La Porte, Indiana
	4-Exhibit A to Agreement Defederalization Agreement (signed)
	5-Exhibit B to Agreement Financial Report for period ending 6-30-2023 without Portfolio Loan List included
	6-Draft Agreement between NIRPC and Michigan City, Indiana
	7-Exhibit A to Agreement Defederalization Agreement (signed)
	8-Exhibit B to Agreement Financial Report for period ending 6-30-2023 without Portfolio Loan List included




